HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Development Management Committee held on 14 January 2016

Present

Councillor Buckley (Chairman)

Councillors Hart, Keast, Satchwell, Howard, Patrick and Guest (Standing Deputy)

77 Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillor R Heard with Councillor D Guest as Deputy.

78 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Development Management Committee held on 17 December 2015 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

79 Matters Arising

There were no matters arising.

80 Site Viewing Working Party Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Site Viewing Working Party held on 7 January 2016 were received subject to the following ammendment

Minute 25 – Cllr Tarrant's name be changed to Cllr Howard.

81 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

82 Chairman's Report

The Chairman advised that all members of the Development Management Committee were invited to attend the meetings of the Local Plan Panel.

83 Matters to be Considered for Site Viewing and Deferment

There were no matters to be considered for site viewing and deferment.

84 Deputations

The Committee received the following deputations/representations

- (1) Councillor Leah Turner (Mayor) Application Number APP/15/01241 Listed Building Consent for additional plaque for war memorial and change fixings to same of existing plaques and Application Number APP/15/01356 Listed Building Consent for 2No. additional plaques (one to replace existing).
- (2) Councillor Michael Cheshire MBE (Leader of the Council) Application Number APP/15/01241 – Listed Building Consent for additional plaque for war memorial and change fixings to same of existing plaques and Application Number APP/15/01356 Listed Building Consent for 2No. additional plaques (one to replace existing).

85 Applications APP/15/01241 and APP/15/01356- War Memorial St Faiths Church, West Street, Havant

(The site was viewed by the Site Viewing Working Party)

Application APP/15/01241

Proposal: For an additional bronze plaque on the eastern buttress. This would be located opposite the existing plaque on the western buttress. The dimensions of the plaque would match the existing plaques already fixed to the monument. It would be placed at the same height as the existing plaque on the north west buttress. The application also proposes to replace the fixings on the generic plaque as these have rusted over time

Application APP/15/01356

Proposal: For listed Building Consent for 2No. additional plaques to be added to the War Memorial. One would be to replace the existing plaque on the north west buttress and the other would be a new plaque on the eastern buttress.

The Committee considered the written reports and recommendations of the Executive Head of Planning and Built Environment to grant permission.

During the meeting officers advised that the design of the plaques would be decided by the Estates team, in conjunction with the project Lead.

The Committee was addressed by the following deputees:

(1) Councillor Turner supported the application for the following reasons:

- a. The proposal was in accordance with the Council's Policy adopted by Full Council 9 December 2015
- b. The proposal would add to the aesthetics of the memorial and was a high quality design
- c. The proposal was supported by the Conservation Officer and Planning Officer
- d. The proposal would add to the community spirit of the Borough
- e. The families of the servicemen and women proposed on the plaque had been consulted and endorsed the proposal
- f. The proposal was the most appropriate way to honour the lives of those lost in conflict
- (2) Councillor Cheshire supported the comments made by Councillor Turner and added that:
 - a. The proposal was in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and the Council's Local Plan
 - b. There were no planning grounds for refusing this application
 - c. The location of the plaques would make a positive impact on the memorial and add to the sense of community
 - d. The addition of the plaques was a suitable addition to the memorial
 - e. The proposal was a positive method of honouring those whose lives were lost in conflict
 - f. The memorial under the Council's control was the most suitable location to honour those who were lost in conflict

In response to a question raised by a member of the Committee, the Committee was advised that any comments or suggestions they wished to make concerning the wording on the proposed plaques should be directed towards the Estates Team

RESOLVED that

- (A) Application APP/15/01241 be grant listed building consent for subject to the following conditions:
 - 1. The works to which this Listed Building Consent relate must be begun within a period of 3 years beginning with the date on which this consent is granted.

Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The font size and style to be used on the additional plaque shall match that used on other World War II commemorative plaques on the War Memorial.

Reason: In the interests of the architectural and historic interest of the listed building and having due regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM20 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Design, Heritage and Access Statement Site Plan DN: WM001 Front elevation - DN: WM002 Plan View - DN: WM003 Existing and proposed pillar - DN: WM004 Wording on Plaque - DNL WM005 Rev A received on 2/12/15

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

- (B) Application APP/15/01241 be grant listed building consent subject to the following conditions:
 - (1) The works to which this Listed Building Consent relate must be begun within a period of 3 years beginning with the date on which this consent is granted.

Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The font size and style to be used on the additional plaque shall match that used on other World War II commemorative plaques on the War Memorial.

Reason: In the interests of the architectural and historic interest of the listed building and having due regard to Policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy DM20 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

(3) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Design, Heritage and Access Statement Site Plan DN: WM001 Front elevation - DN: WM002 Plan View - DN: WM003 Existing and proposed pillar - DN: WM004 Wording on Plaque - DNL WM005 Rev A received on 2/12/15 Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 5.20 pm

.....

Chairman